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Glossary of  
Frequently-Used 
Mortgage Lending 
Terms 
Adjustable Rate Mortgage (ARM) - A 
mortgage loan subject to changes in interest 
rates.  When rates change, ARM monthly 
payments increase or decrease at intervals 

determined by the lender, usually subject to a cap.

Conventional Loan - A private sector loan that is not guaranteed or insured 
by a U.S. government agency such as the Veterans Administration (VA) or the 
Federal Housing Authority (FHA). 

Default - Failure to perform a legal obligation, including failure to pay a finan-
cial obligation.

Delinquency - Failure of a borrower to make timely loan payments as 
agreed.

Equity - The difference between the market value of a property and the sum 
of the outstanding loan balance plus all other liens on the property.  For ex-
ample: if your property is worth $130,000 but you owe $100,000 in loans and 
liens, then you have $30,000 of equity.

Fixed-Rate Mortgage - A mortgage with loan payments that remain the 
same throughout the life of the loan because the terms are fixed and do not 
change.  This does not account for changes in property tax assessments or 
other escrow items which also affect the amount of a monthly payment.

Foreclosure - The legal process to seize a property if a borrower fails to keep 
up your payments. 

Home Equity Loan, also known as HELO - Describes any mortgage loan 
that is not used to finance the principal purchase of the home.  Depending 
upon the terms of the contract, the borrower’s home is in jeopardy if the bor-
rower fails to make payments.

Lien - A legal claim filed against a property that must be repaid when the 
property is sold.  With a mortgage, the lender has the right to take the title 
to the property if the borrower does not make the payments due on the 
mortgage.

Loan-To-Value (LTV) Ratio - The proportion of the amount borrowed to the 
market price or appraised value of the property.  A larger down payment re-
duces the LTV ratio.

Subprime Loan - A loan provided at rate that is higher than the “prime” rate 
offered for conventional loans. Typically, subprime loans are for individuals 
who may have poor or no credit history, or who have other characteristics that 
allow a higher rate to be charged.

Truth-in-Lending Act (TILA) - A federal law that requires lenders to provide 
consumers with a truth-in-lending statement - including the total cost of credit, 
the annual percentage rate (APR), and other specific terms of the loan.

Alternatives to 
Foreclosure
Special Forbearance.  Your lender 
may be able to arrange a repayment 
plan that is based upon your current 
financial situation and may even 
provide for a temporary reduction 
or suspension of your payments.  
You may qualify for this if you’ve 
recently experienced an involuntary 
reduction in income or an increase 
in living expenses.

Mortgage 
Modification.  You 
may be able to refi-
nance the debt and 
extend the term of 
your mortgage loan.  
This will help you 
catch up by possibly reducing the 
monthly payments to a more afford-
able level.  You may qualify if you’ve 
recovered from a financial problem 
but your net income is less than it 
was before the default.

Partial Claim.  If you qualify, your 
lender may be able to work with you 
to obtain an interest-free loan from 
the US Dept of Housing & Urban 
Development to bring your mort-
gage current.

Pre-Foreclosure Sale.  If you are 
not able to afford your mortgage 
payments in the long-term, you may 
be able to sell your property before 
a foreclosure sale.  This will allow 
you to avoid foreclosure and may 
enable you to pay off your loan, save 
some of your equity, and prevent 
significant damage to your credit 
rating.

Deed-in-lieu of foreclosure.  As 
a last resort, you may be able to vol-
untarily “give back” your property 
to the lender.  This won’t save your 
house, but may help your future 
chances of getting another mortgage 
loan.
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Financial  
Resource 

Guide

Some of the information in this guide is 
used with permission from the Washington 

Department of Financial Institutions.

If you need more information or would like 
to file a complaint about a financial institu-
tion, please contact the appropriate regula-
tor or agency listed below.

Federal
NATIONAL CREDIT UNION 
ADMINISTRATION (NCUA) 
www.ncua.gov 
NCUA is an independent federal agency 
that charters and supervises federal 
credit unions and that insures deposits in 
federal and most state-chartered credit 
unions across the country.  NCUA main-
tains a 24-hour toll-free consumer com-
plaint line at 1-800-755-1030.  

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER OF 
THE CURRENCY (OCC) 
www.occ.treas.gov  
As an agency within the US Department 
of the Treasury, the OCC charters, regu-
lates, and supervises more than 2,500 
national banks to ensure a safe, sound 
and competitive national banking sys-
tem. The OCC also supervises federally 
licensed branches and agencies of for-
eign banks.  Consumers may make in-
quiries and file complaints by calling the 
toll-free telephone number:  
1-800-613-6743.  

OFFICE OF THRIFT SUPERVISION 
(OTS), www.ots.treas.gov  
OTS serves as the primary regulator of 
all federal as well as many state-char-
tered thrift institutions, including savings 
banks and savings & loan associations. 
To make an inquiry or to file a com-
plaint, contact the regional OTS office 
in San Francisco at 1-650-746-7000 or 
Consumer Affairs in Washington, D.C. at 
1-800-842-6929 toll-free.  

FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE 
CORPORATION (FDIC), www.fdic.
gov  
The FDIC is an independent fed-
eral agency that insures deposits up to 
$100,000 and retirement accounts up 
to $250,000 in banks and thrift insti-
tutions.  Created in response to wide-
spread bank failures in the early 1930s, 
the FDIC examines and supervises banks 
to ensure the safety and soundness of 
the financial marketplace.  To obtain in-
formation about how to make an inquiry 
or file a complaint, telephone the FDIC 
Consumer Response Center toll-free at 
1-877-275-3342.  

US DEPARTMENT OF Housing AND 
Urban Development (HUD) 
www.hud.gov
HUD’s mission is to increase homeown-
ership, support community develop-
ment, and increase access to affordable 
housing free from discrimination. Please 
call the toll-free telephone number pro-
vided with each category to request 
information about filing a complaint: 

Housing Discrimination: 
  1-800-669-9777
Bad Landlords in Federal Housing: 
  1-800-685-8470
Manufactured Housing: 
  1-800-927-2891

To request information on filing 
complaints involving Land Sales or 
Deceptive Contractors, call HUD in 
Washington, D.C. at 1-202-708-1112.   

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION 
(FTC), www.ftc.gov   
The Federal Trade Commission provides 
oversight for many consumer protection 

Directory of Financial Regulators
laws including truth-in-advertising, anti-
price fixing, telemarketing sales, and the 
Equal Credit Opportunity Act.  For infor-
mation on how to file a complaint with 
the FTC, call 1-877-382-4357.  

State
THE DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL 
INSTITUTIONS (DFI) 
www.dfi.wa.gov
The Department of Financial Institutions 
regulates the financial services industry 
in Washington, including state-chartered 
banks and credit unions, mortgage bro-
kers, consumer loan companies, securi-
ties issuers and salespeople.  Go on-line 
or call toll-free 1-877-746-4334 for con-
sumer information about credit, identity 
theft, investment scams, and more.

OFFICE OF THE INSURANCE 
COMMISSIONER (OIC) 
www.insurance.wa.gov
The Office of the Insurance 
Commissioner regulates the insurance 
industry in Washington state.  Insurance-
related complaints may be reported to 
the OIC consumer hotline at 1-800-562-
6900.

ATTORNEY GENERAL (ATG) 
www.atg.wa.gov
The State Attorney General’s Office 
protects consumers against fraud.  You 
can file a consumer complaint by calling 
1-800-551-4636 or filling out a form on 
their website.  If you are unsure about 
whether to file a complaint, call 1-800-
551-4636 or 1-800-833-6384 for the 
hearing impaired.
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